

COUNTY OF ORANGE HEALTH CARE AGENCY Regulatory / Medical Health Services EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 405 W. Fifth Street, Suite 301A Santa Ana, CA 92701



COUNTY PREHOSPITAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Wednesday, January 12, 2022 – 1:00 p.m. Meeting held via Zoom Video Conferencing

MINUTES

MEMBERSHIP / ATTENDANCE

MEMBERS	REPRESENTING	MEMBERS	REPRESENTING
 ☑ Theodore Heyming, MD ☑ Jon Cline MD ☑ Robert Granata, MD ☑ Matthew Hunt, MD (excused) ☐ Iksoo Kang, MD ☐ Eric McCoy, MD ☐ Double MD 	 BHPD – St. Jude Medical Center BHPD – UCI Medical Center 	 Jeff Lopez, EMT-P Patrick Dibb Patty Gleed, RN (excused) Kristin Thompson, RN Kim Nichols, RN 	 Representing Huntington Beach Fire Dep EMT Training Programs Paramedic Training Fire Chiefs' EMS Committee ED Nursing Leadership
☐ David Ngo, MD ☐ Kelly Unger, MD	 BHPD – Huntington Beach Hospital BHPD – Huntington Beach Hospital 	OCEMS STAFF PRESENT	
 ☑ Robert Katzer, MD ☑ Claus Hecht MD ☑ Shira Schlesinger, MD 	 Anaheim Fire & Rescue Orange County Fire Authority Newport Beach Fire Department 	Carl Schultz, MD Gagandeep Grewal, MD	 EMS Medical Director Associate EMS Medical Director EMS Systems & Standards Chief
⊠ Julia Afrasiabi, RN ⊠ Ruth Clark, RN ⊠ Laura Cross, RN ⊠ Gloria Guerra, RN	 BHC – UCI Medical Center BHC – Orange County Global Med. Ctr. BHC – Mission Hospital BHC – St. Jude Medical Center 	Adrian Rodriguez Kevin Chao Vicki Sweet, RN	 EMS Performance Chief HEM Preparedness Chief ALS/CQI Coordinator EMS BLS Coordinator
 ☑ Cyndie Strader, RN ☑ Christine Waddell, RN ☑ Kim Zaky, RN 	 BHC – Hoag Hospital BHC – Huntington Beach Hospital BHC – Children's Hospital of Orange County 	Fran Cohen, RN Andrew Roberts	 EMS Facilities Coordinator OC-MEDS Coordinator EMS Nurse Liaison EMS Specialist
☑ Dave Barry, EMT-P☑ Brandon Grinstead, EMT-P	Representing Anaheim Fire DepartmentRepresenting Orange County Fire Auth.		EMS Office SupervisorOffice Specialist
	GUESTS	PRESENT	
MEMBERS	REPRESENTING	MEMBERS	REPRESENTING
Jenny Beelke Drew Bernard Shelley Brukman, RN Ryan Creager Damian Cyphers Josh Dean Elena Giardano Brice Girdley, RN	 Lynch Ambulance Service Emergency Ambulance Service Children's Hospital of Orange County Mercy Air Service Liberty Ambulance Service Premier Ambulance Service Ambulnz Lynch Ambulance Service 	Nicole Plouffe, RN Patrick Powers Phil Robinson Rhonda Rosati, RN Sandra Schultz, RN Bill Sullivan	 Mission Hospital Children's Hospital of Orange County City of Placentia City of Laguna Niguel Brea/Fullerton Fire Department Orange County Fire Authority Orange County Fire Authority AP
Danial Craham	Libertha Analastan an Orandara	looph Werener	Lymah Amhulanaa Camilaa

Ι. CALL TO ORDER

Daniel Graham

Bryan Johnson, RN

The meeting was called to order by the Chair, Dr. Ted Heyming.

- Liberty Ambulance Service

- Orange City Fire Department

II. **INTRODUCTIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS**

III. **APPROVAL OF MINUTES**

Minutes from the November 10, 2021, meeting was approved as submitted.

IV. **OCEMS REPORT**

Presented by Dr. Schultz:

-

Lynch Ambulance Service

Children's Hospital of Orange County

Medical Director's Report •

Dr. Carl Schultz reported on the new drugs that are used to combat COVID-19. One of these drugs, has not been found to be effective. This drug is dispensed directly to pharmacies by the State and EMS does not play a role in its dispensing. Another drug is a combination of two new monoclonal prophylaxis that is

Jacob Wagoner

Amy Waunch, RN

being distributed directly to hospitals and is used only in cancer and transplant patients. Monoclonal antibodies have been found to be effective in use for omicron patients going to the hospital.

OCEMS Report:

Dr. Grewal presented a report on COVID in Orange County. He stated that the case rates remain high and presently there are 79 cases per 100,000 population which is much higher than last year. 25%-30% of COVID cases are in the ICU. 87% of COVID patients in the ICU have not been vaccinated with the remaining COVID patients being elderly and vaccinated. It has been noted that other types of respiratory illnesses have been seen.

David Johnson reported that the Health Care Agency has entered in an agreement with a new provider for the provision of a bi-directional data exchange program. Jason Azuma reported that details are being worked out. Jeff Lopez, Huntington Beach Fire, inquired whether data will continue to be uploaded into OCPRIHO. Mr. Azuma reported the OCPRIHO system will continue to exist and fully functioning until the new agreement between fire departments and OCEMS is in place.

• Health Emergency Management (Disaster Report):

Kevin Chao reported on activities discussed with Health Emergency Management. In-person planning meetings with Emergency Managers will resume to plan for drills and exercise once the pandemic ends. Danielle Ogaz reported that hospitals and skilled nursing facilities may submit a resource request to fill staffing shortages (nurses and paramedics). The information is submitted to the State who will work directly with the facility to fulfill these requests. At the present time eight acute care hospitals and one skilled nursing facility have submitted requests to fill additional staffing needs. Other hospital resource requests are pending.

Dr. Grewal reported on the test kits that have been received. CDPH has distributed iHealth Kits for the purpose of testing healthcare workers.

• Hospital Diversion Report (Annual Report for 2021):

David Johnson presented the 2021 Annual Diversion Report (see attachment #2). Mr. Johnson stated that staffing shortages have made it difficult for hospitals to not be on diversion. Specialty (stroke-neurology, STEMI, and trauma) centers were allowed to go on diversion for a number of reasons. HAVBed reports must be submitted by the hospitals three times a week.

V. Unfinished Business

VI. New Business

• Suspension of Hospital Diversion:

Dr. Schultz reported that reasons for suspending diversion a year ago is different that the circumstance that had taken place. Dave Barry asked if there is a solution to reduce diversion for those facilities that border Los Angeles County. Dr. Schultz reported that both LEMSAs have met to discuss a solution solving the negative impact that diversion has on bordering hospitals. If a Los Angeles County Hospital (i.e., St. Mary's, Long Beach Memorial, and Lakewood Medical Center) is closed for diversion, then their Orange County counterpart (St. Jude, La Palma, and Los Alamitos) would also close for diversion.

<u>Ambulance Patient Off-Load Time Discussion and 2021 Annual Report:</u>

Jason Azuma reported that December, 2021 recorded the highest number of 9-1-1 transports since the tracking of APOT. At one point in time, the single day record for 911 ambulance transports is 60 runs with 16 hospitals record APOT times over 40 minutes.

• Ambulance Mutual Aid

As 9-1-1 transports have increased, a large number of ambulance transports are being held at emergency receiving centers throughout the County. This resulted in the institution of a policy that allows ambulance units to either transfer a patient to another receiving center or leave the patient at the hospital on a cot or placed in the waiting area provided certain criteria are met. The ambulance transport provider must wait for greater than 60 minutes **and** a second unit must wait a minimum of 15 minutes before the patient is taken to another facility or left on a cot at the receiving center before returning to service. This policy will remain in place until stress on the system improves.

• Discussion on Potential Policy on Treat and Release

Dr. Schultz asked Committee members on developing a COVID-19 specific treat and release policy which allows paramedics to respond to a call and not have an ambulance dispatched. Concerns were expressed on the number of calls; conflicting information between the base hospital and field paramedics; and any age limit which was determined to be between 2 years and 65 years of age.

VII. Other Business

VIII. Advisory Committee Reports

• Base Hospital Coordinators - Julia Afrasiabi reporting.

Items and goals that the base hospital coordinators are working on. They look forward to having a good year working with their partners.

• Orange County Fire Chief EMS – Jeff Lopez reporting

Discussion on the memorandum released on December 29, 2021 regarding the temporary suspension of hospital diversion and actions to reduce ambulance patient off-load times (APOT).

• Orange County Nursing Leadership – Kim Nichols reporting:

The first meeting for this Committee will be held on Friday, January 14, 2022. They plan to discuss staffing issues and to have more open communication.

• Facilities Advisory Subcommittee

This Committee met on January 11, 2022 and discussed everything on today's agenda. They recommended that one facility be redesignated as a Stroke Neurology Receiving Center. The recommendation will be brought before the Emergency Medical Care Committee on Friday, January 14, 2022.

IX. **<u>NEXT MEETING</u>** – Wednesday, March 9, 2022 at 1:00 p.m.

X. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned.